

# **Council Minutes**

Date: 17 July 2017

Time: 6.30 - 7.36 pm

**PRESENT:** Councillor Miss S Brown (in the Chair)

Councillors Mrs J A Adey, Mrs S Adoh, K Ahmed, Z Ahmed, M C Appleyard, M Asif, D H G Barnes, Ms A Baughan, S Broadbent, H Bull, D J Carroll, M Clarke, Mrs L M Clarke OBE, A D Collingwood, R Farmer, S Graham, A R Green, G C Hall, M Harris, C B Harriss, M A Hashmi, A E Hill, A Hussain, M Hussain JP, D A Johncock, Mrs G A Jones, M E Knight, D Knights, Mrs J D Langley, A Lee, Mrs W J Mallen, N B Marshall, H L McCarthy, I L McEnnis, Ms C J Oliver, B E Pearce, G Peart, S K Raja, R Raja, S Saddique, J A Savage, R J Scott, D A C Shakespeare OBE, A Turner, P R Turner, Ms J D Wassell, D M Watson, L Wood and Ms K S Wood,

**Also present:** Honorary Aldermen: J M Blanksby.

### 11 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Honorary Aldermen: P Cartwright, E H Collins, M Oram, Mrs K M Peatey and Mrs P Priestley. Councillors: C Etholen, R Gaffney, M Hanif, Maz Hussain, R Newman, J Teesdale, N Teesdale and R Wilson.

### 12 MINUTES

**RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 3 April and of Annual Council held on 15 May 2017 be confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chairman.

### 13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Declarations of interest were received in relation to minute 16, of the Cabinet minutes of 10 July 2017, from Councillor Miss K Wood, L Wood, and D Shakespeare, as they all had properties in close proximity to the development site under consideration. They all withdrew from the meeting for the duration of discussions on minute 16.

### 14 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman of the Council announced that she had undertaken some 32 engagements since taking office in May. She highlighted the following events:

(a) Armed Forces Day – this had taken place on 17 June at the Rugby club where attendees had danced to raise funds for charity.

(b) Busy Bees Pre School Graduation Ceremony – This was held on 13 July when young children had donned little red gowns and hats.

The Chairman also emphasised that Members should endeavour if possible to attend the Battle of Britain Service on 17 September 2017.

### 15 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

# (a) Question from Mr J Hill to the Leader of the Council

"Over the last few years the nature and users of High Wycombe Towns historic Charter Market and market have changed with the loss of a significant number of stalls covering a wide range of goods that you would expect to see in a thriving town market. There has been an increase in the provision of hot food outlets.

What are the views of the Leader and her Cabinet on the demise of the town's Historic Charter Market which has been in existence for some 7 centuries?"

# Response from Councillor Ms K Wood (Leader of the Council)

"High Wycombe's market has played an important role in the town for several centuries and the Council is committed to ensuring the market continues to thrive and prosper in the future. In recent years we have supported the Market in a number of ways including help with the installation of new stalls.

The move of markets away from dry goods towards a greater emphasis on food & drink is a national phenomenon. In the most recent edition of the National Market Traders Federation magazine (June 2017) the Chief Executive's annual report laments the continuing decline in the number of market traders across the UK as a whole.

The sale of dry goods and clothing in markets has been affected by the rise of 'value' retailers such as Pound World, Pound Land, B&M and Primark who, in many cases can undercut the prices that market traders can achieve by buying their goods from large wholesalers.

Many markets have enjoyed a rise in fresh and artisan food with a strong local provenance (evidenced by the growth of farmers' markets) as well as 'street food' from a variety of cultural and ethnic traditions.

The fact that High Wycombe has a market charter dating from medieval times cannot insulate it from changes in consumer tastes and perceptions about what and why they choose to buy from street markets rather than shops, supermarkets or online.

There are certainly issues including food hygiene, cooking fumes and litter problems that can arise from hot food takeaways. However, the Council has

resources to manage these issues and to license the traders who operate such outlets.

It is not realistic or sensible for the Council to intervene to protect market traders from 'market forces'. Both the town centre and the retail market have undergone dramatic changes in recent years. The advent of 'discounters' and on-line shopping and the town's demographics all mean that street markets have to evolve. The same old offering is not enough to attract people. One aspect of this change being that the market has been successful in capitalising upon the growth of 'street food', with new improved seating to come. It retains two fruit and veg stalls and a successful newcomer is a popular cut flower and plant stall. Plans are being worked on to better utilise the under-crofts of the Guildhall and Little Market House. The market manager will be working with the new BiD Co to arrange regular street entertainment. Ultimately, it is for market traders to make a success of their individual businesses.

# **Supplementary Question**

"Does Major Projects or the Estates Department have any influence over the decision as to how the market should be run in the future?"

# **Supplementary Response**

"No operator wants to see the demise of the market. This Council will continue to support the market to create the environment and conditions that will help market traders to succeed and adapt to changing consumer tastes and demands."

### (b)Question from Mr T Snaith to the Cabinet Member for Planning

"In light of all the work done by officers and community groups on the Abbey Barn and Gomm valley developments. I note that the groups have not met to review the infrastructure group findings and the report has not been released.

Why has the Cabinet deemed to debate the release of Gomm Valley ahead of feedback from the groups?"

### Response from Councillor D Johncock (Cabinet Member for Planning)

"The final Infrastructure Roundtable report was published in June 2016 and is available on our website. If you are unable to find this, I will e-mail you the weblink details. The publication of this report effectively concluded the workings of the Infrastructure Roundtable and therefore there have been no more meetings since.

The fact is that each of the Reserve Site Liaison Groups had a representative on the Infrastructure Roundtable who then reported back to their specific groups. The requirements in the infrastructure report informed the Development Briefs and will inform both the Infrastructure Development Plan associated with the new Local Plan and, of course, any future planning applications.

In terms of the Gomm Valley & Ashwells brief, the Liaison Group met 12 times through 2015 and 2016 to discuss issues as the site development brief evolved.

There have been two full rounds of Liaison Group consultations on the site development brief and one public consultation. There have also been public exhibitions (Council and Developer led). So the infrastructure needs associated with this site have been widely publicised and consulted upon.

Yes, there has been a significant delay in updating the site development brief for Gomm Valley and Ashwells following the public consultation and that is regrettable. However, we eventually got there and the brief was approved at Cabinet last Monday.

Consultation with the Abbey Barn Liaison Groups took place from 12th January 2015 to 1st December 2015. The Liaison Group met 7 times through 2015 to discuss issues as the Abbey Barn South development brief evolved. There were two full rounds of Liaison Group consultation on the Brief and one public consultation. There have also been public exhibitions (Council and Developer led). The Development Brief was adopted in July 2016. As with GVA Site Development Brief, the time delay between the final Liaison Group meeting and the adoption of the Brief was necessary to action changes to the Brief."

# **Supplementary Question**

"There still remain many un addressed issues on such matters as infrastructure and the problems with traffic congestion in London Road. There has been resistance from many groups, what does WCC propose to do about this? There has been much poor decision making in the process and everyone else has been blamed, example the developer, the Government. If this is the best she can do perhaps the Leader should consider resigning."

# **Supplementary Response**

"There has not been any poor decision making, I agree there is congestion on the London Road and that it does present a challenge. However we need to work closely with the County Council and with Highways to come up with some effective solutions. You must let the officers get on with the job."

### 16 QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS

### (a) Question from Councillor R Raja to the Leader of the Council.

"In view of the horrific Grenfell fire and the series of catastrophic missteps and a woefully inadequate response from Kensington & Chelsea Council in the first 48 hours of the tragedy, it has put the Kensington & Chelsea Council under a bitter national spotlight.

It also shows that whilst you can have all the policies in place but the lack of preparedness to meet such challenges means that policies, which cannot be put in practice, are not worth the paper they are written on.

With the hope that we never have to experience anything of the magnitude of Grenfell, can the Leader of the Council reassure us that all necessary fire & safety precautions are in place in all social housing facilities within the authority's area?"

# Response from Councillor Ms K Wood (Leader of the Council)

"Obviously my thoughts and prayers go out to those who have suffered and lost their lives in this terrible tragedy. As I am sure you would agree, we should not politicise such events but work together to find solutions.

Following the transfer to Red Kite of our housing stock in 2012 we only have one property left. The Council's remaining social housing stock at Saunderton Lodge has been subject to a fire safety audit prior to the tragic events at Grenfell. Since then, we have carried out a further risk assessment to ensure that we are doing all we can to manage and minimise the risk to our staff and residents at the lodge, this has been with the involvement of the Fire Service too.

The social housing stock in the district is owned and managed by a number of Registered Housing Providers who are subject to their own risk assessments and compliance with fire safety for their stock. Bucks Fire and Rescue are the relevant authority for fire safety in the District. Having checked their websites the major ones certainly all have messages regarding their fire safety procedures.

There was no supplementary question.

# (b)Question from Councillor M Knight to the Cabinet Member for Community.

"Along with victims of knife crime in High Wycombe I have previously called for a knife amnesty to be held.

Neither the council nor the police have deemed this to be necessary until now. Could you tell me how serious the problem needs to get before the council joins me in calling on the police to hold an amnesty in order to reduce the number of offensive weapons on our streets?"

### Response from Councillor G Peart (Cabinet Member for Community).

"I have obtained information from the Police for you, as they deal with knife crime in the District. I can report that their figures disprove your suggestion that we are experiencing an epidemic as there is no particular increase in knife crime compared to last year. However, I do share your concern over the recent incidents of youth violence, caused by groups of young people fighting each other.

You will be interested to know that Operation Sceptre starts next week which is part of a national Knife Crime Campaign. There will be bins placed outside the police station where people can surrender knives and the Council is actively participating in the publicity campaign for this. The Police will also be undertaking other work, such as stop and search, during this operation.

Also Wycombe Youth Action continues to deliver the Empower Project locally, working with vulnerable young men to address issues such as knife crime, gang participation and radicalisation and providing 1-2-1 mentoring. Last year they supported 175 young people.

We have also been urging the County Council to reinstate the Gangs Multi Agency Partnership (GMAP), which they took on from the Police. GMAP focuses on intervening early with younger gang members to divert them away from criminality. It was reviewed by the Home Office and I very much hope that it will be reconvened soon as the work is very much needed.

TVP used to run GMAP but the member of staff left. It went to BCC and I believe the thinking was that it sat well within the Safer and Stronger Partnership, which has a Community and Domestic Violence Sub Group and a range of multi- agency meetings already established for early intervention work. Bcc is also the agency with responsibility for youth services and youth offending services. There are also gangs in Aylesbury so a Bucks wide approach meshing with the existing multi agency meetings and Bucks wide services is best. We would need funding for an extra post if we wanted to try to do this and the person would spend a lot of time in Bucks wide meetings discussing cases and may not have the leverage with BCC services to get the necessary interventions in place.

# **Supplementary Question**

Whilst I welcome operation Sceptre, and your comments on gangs and that more should be done, do you agree with me that WDC has a role to play in promoting public safety and needs to be proactive in working with the police to ensure action is taken, particularly now we have seen a rise in acid attacks?

### **Supplementary Response**

"Some young men who cannot find a job are frustrated and feel disenfranchised from community. We are considering how best to assist those young people into a productive occupation or assistance with setting up of new micro businesses.

This is a national problem rather than a local one so we have no quick remedy but I am hopeful that the initiatives outlined will begin to take effect."

### ©Question from Councillor A Hashmi to the Cabinet Member for Environment

"Is the Cabinet Member for the Environment aware that the waste collection service in the town is falling apart. A number of people in my ward have complained that their bins have been emptied days later than scheduled.

Even more worryingly, the promises of special services to those with disabilities are not being met. I understand that this is due to the waste collection service suffering from broken down vehicles and a shortage of manpower.

This may be due to incompetence on part of WDC or the company providing waste collection services, whatever how does she plan to rectify this failure so that residents can be sure of a reliable vital service?"

# Response from Councillor Mrs J Adey (Cabinet Member for Environment)

"I am aware that some waste collections have experienced delays over the last few weeks.

Unfortunately Serco have experienced a number of operational difficulties

A power outage at the recycling depot resulted in delays in the processing of mixed recycling, paper & cardboard, due to the weighbridge and paper sorting facility being temporarily out of action. Whilst this issue was resolved speedily it unfortunately occurred at the same time as Serco were introducing new collection rounds for bulk bins provided to residents of flats and there have been some teething problems as crews became familiar with their new rounds and the location of bin stores.

In addition, there have also been a number of vehicle breakdowns and sickness issues affecting some crews. The special services for those with disability you mention may I believe refer to one particular case which has now been resolved with the property put on the hot list. Assisted collections are always prioritised.

I would like to reassure members that we are working closely with Serco and I have requested an urgent meeting with them to discuss current issues and seek assurances that every effort is being made to return to a normal service."

### **Supplementary Question**

"Should the people of Wycombe be warned that this vital service is not a priority?"

### **Supplementary Response**

"Yes of course it is a priority, and we are working towards resolving the problems as soon as possible. We have a meeting with Serco imminently following which we will have fuller answers."

# (d)Question from Councillor K Ahmed to the Leader of the Council

"In light of the recent BFP article relating to the loss of revenue through uncollected fines from the defunct ANPR system, can the Leader explain as to why the public is having to find out about the true cost of the failed project via FOI's and why a full inquiry was not deemed appropriate to dispel any theories of a 'cover up' regarding the actual amount lost?"

# Response from Councillor Ms K Wood (Leader of the Council).

"I am aware that parking was in the local news again last week, following the release of information related to parking tickets and fine income.

I have been very clear that changing from ANPR to pay and display wasn't an easy decision. We were all disappointed that we had to make changes to how people

pay to park and that as a result, there has been an increase in the number of fines that have been issued, all of which impacts upon our customer's experience of the district. While pay and display is a perfectly valid system used in car parks across the county, we recognise that it's a less customer friendly system and the change has caused inconvenience to our customers, which is the last thing we wanted.

I strongly refute your suggestion about a cover up. We have been open about the investment we made in the more customer friendly ANPR system and the subsequent costs that we incurred by changing to pay and display. We were also open about the fact that using ANPR as an enforcement method in our car parks meant that we would be issuing fewer parking tickets in comparison to pay and display, which reduced our running costs. These were two of the reasons we opted for the system in the first place together with providing more flexible payment systems for customers who did not have to guess how long they would be parked for. Whilst this information was recently released as a result of a freedom of information request, we would still be reporting these figures, in public, as part of the Council's budget monitoring process.

# **Supplementary Question**

"Following your reshuffle of the Cabinet Member for Environment, you too should reconsider your position."

# **Supplementary Response**

"I have said we have been clear about the reasons and costs for changing from ANPR. We are not in the business to make money from our residents in parking fines. I want our residents to be able to enjoy coming into our town to shop and use the facilities we provide. We have always been clear that ANPR would result in fewer fines and I am disappointed that the Labour party seem to think that we are making money out of our residents.

Essentially we implemented ANPR as it was a good system, and still is. The reversion was caused by a change in Government policy at DCLG after we successfully completed the pilot and implemented a complete roll out."

### e)Question from Councillor M Asif to the Cabinet Member for Community.

"Analysing the data from the Office of National Statistics (ONS), it is clear that homicide and knife crime have actually increased. You only have to open the local newspaper and see that knife crime is becoming more and more of a problem. Is the council taking any pro-active measures to tackle this epidemic, within the District?"

# **Response from Councillor G Peart (Cabinet Member for Community)**

"It is a similar question on the same subject as raised by Cllr Knight and I refer you to my previous detailed response to that question. You are correct in saying that knife crime has increased nationally and particularly in London. Fortunately the

local police have indicated that there has not been a similar rise in knife crime in our District as I alluded to earlier.

This does not mean that the Council, BCC and TVP are complacent and we will together continue to do all we can to educate young people that simply carrying a knife is a serious crime and is not acceptable behaviour in any form in any place within our communities.

It would be a very positive step to enable as many young people as possible with the tools to either find meaningful employment or to assist them to start their own enterprise if that is their wish."

There was no supplementary question.

# (f)Question from Councillor Ms J Wassell to the Cabinet Member for Planning.

"I am interested in the process for selecting locations for tree planting and obtaining funding. How are these saplings monitored and maintained?"

# Response from Councillor D Johncock (Cabinet Member for Planning)

"The Council sees trees as an important part of the landscape and our towns. Where appropriate we aim to secure new tree planting as part of new development that comes forward through the planning process.

As part of managing the Council's tree stock we also recognise that a continual process of management and renewal requires new tree planting and an allowance is made as part of the Council's revenue budget.

In addition, where members wish to support additional tree planting they may do so either through the annual allocation of CIL and s106 contributions or by allocating their own Ward budgets. Members sometimes nominate their budget to plant trees in specific locations and we always seek to oblige if possible.

Tree planting locations are selected for a number of reasons, taking account of public and member comments, opportunity, need (for example where trees have died), and the value that new planting would make to an area. Last autumn ward members were invited to suggest sites for tree planting in the unparished area and comments were taken into account in selecting locations.

Trees that are planted on behalf of the Council have aftercare visits for several years to support establishment that involves adding mulch, checking tree ties, stakes, and overall condition. During periods of unusually hot weather there is provision for watering of recently planted trees (unless exceptionally water restrictions apply.) This protects the Councils investment in tree planting until trees have become established with deeper root systems and can fend for themselves! Trees that are planted as part of developments generally have a condition attached that requires these to be maintained for five years.

The tree aftercare works are undertaken by an external contractor who has experience and also has the appropriate licences to draw water. Currently this contractor (Civic Trees) is undertaking the second of four programmed watering cycles. See picture taken recently in the morning of 14<sup>th</sup> July.

Of course, if Members know of any young trees that seem to be in particular need of attention then they simply need to draw these to the attention of our tree officers who can ensure that the appropriate arrangements are put in place."

# **Supplementary Question**

"It is clear that new trees are suffering following the current spate of hot weather, how does the contractor know that he needs to go out for the tree's aftercare following these high temperatures. Perhaps they should be doing so a matter of course."

# **Supplementary Response**

"We take care of approximately 10,000 trees and a further 12,000 on Red Kite's behalf. As you can imagine it is a considerable task to undertake, and we do our best. Please let us know if you feel we have missed any."

# (g)Question from Councillor Ms A Baughan to the Cabinet Member for Housing.

"Please could you confirm the latest figures for street homeless people in the District, and the method used for counting?"

# Response from Councillor Mrs J Langley (Cabinet Member for Housing)

"The estimated number of rough sleepers in the District is approximately 8 (as at 5<sup>th</sup> July).

This number is calculated by local agencies actively working together in partnership through a local Rough Sleepers Core Group that meets every 2 weeks. This Group discusses persons that are alleged/believed to be rough sleeping within the District and looks to try to identify suitable available options for each individual.

### **Supplementary Question**

"I appreciate that officers charities and the Cabinet are working hard to help vulnerable people with housing.

I would like to send you information if I may about other organisations I have been researching recently, example `Housing First` and `Habitat for Humanity`, which may be of interest and may be of some practical use."

### **Supplementary Response**

"It is refreshing that someone is keeping an interest in these matters. I would like to draw your attention to an article published in the Wycombe Times regarding homelessness, which you may also find useful."

# (h)Question from Councillor K Ahmed to the Leader of the Council.

"Two years ago, upon election as Leader, she announced that she was keen to engage more closely with younger people across the district. A new cabinet post for Youth was created, it is now noted that the terms of reference for the post have been changed a little and the member responsible for the portfolio also has been changed.

Can the Leader highlight the achievements of the outgoing member and enlighten us as to what the incoming Cabinet Member is intending to do things differently for this important portfolio?"

# Response from Councillor Ms K Wood (Leader of the Council)

"Maybe you failed to notice that the original portfolio holder stepped down nearly a year ago and that Cllr Carroll very ably stepped into his shoes and is progressing a number of projects.

When I became Leader I recognised the significant contribution our young people can and do make to the District by creating a new Cabinet portfolio to increase the engagement and collaboration between the Council and young people. I wish to thank Councillor Newman for his drive and enthusiasm in establishing the new portfolio within the Council and getting out and about to meet so many partners and young people and bringing their views back. Cllr Newman focused his work on building relationships and partnerships with the district youth organisations. Specific examples include closer working with BNU and his work with Toolshed and Wycombe Youth Action and the Youth Forum in general.

Since I appointed Councillor Carroll last year we have re launched WYSP, the networking forum for youth service providers, and awarded a contract for a new District Youth Council – elections to this will take place in the autumn. I now that some of my colleagues are already planning to meet with the Youth Council because we see them as a valuable source of stakeholder engagement.

We are reaching out to various youth organisations to make sure that they know we are here to help if at all possible. There will be more exciting news announced soon of other projects that are being launched."

Councillor Carroll briefly addressed the meeting on some of the recent initiatives that were underway or being re launched. He highlighted the re launch of the Youth Forum which included representatives of Thames Valley Police, which ensured an effective dialogue with young people.

### (i)Question from Councillor R Raja to the Leader of the Council.

"A joint investigation by the Guardian newspaper and Greenpeace (in April) has reported that "hundreds of thousands of children are exposed to illegal levels of air pollution from diesel vehicles at schools and nurseries across England". Furthermore, analysis of the most recent government data exposes how dangerous levels of nitrogen dioxide (NO2) pollution from diesel traffic is not limited to large metropolitan centres, but threaten the health of children and young people in towns and cities throughout the country.

As we are clearly not immune from these illegal levels of pollution, which is toxic for large sections of young and old. Will the leader tell us if she plans to earmark some modest resources to understanding the conclusions of these studies and for WDC to draw up measures to minimise the harmful effects of this pollution?"

# Response from Councillor Ms K Wood (Leader of the Council)

"The Council has commissioned an air quality report to highlight any areas where national air quality limits are exceeded. The results show that Nitrogen Dioxide levels are exceeded in areas along the main arterial roads of High Wycombe, in Marlow Town centre and along the M40 corridor. In response to this report proposed Air Quality Management Areas have already been mapped and these will shortly be the subject of discussion.

Following consultation with our statutory partners, it is intended that a report will be presented to the September Cabinet recommending the declaration of these Air Quality Management Areas.

If the Air Quality Management Areas are declared, a steering group consisting of various stakeholders will be created with the main purpose of delivering an Air Quality Action Plan. The aim of the plan will be for the various stakeholders to commit to proposals that are designed to reduce the level of Nitrogen Dioxide emissions to below the national limits.

If any members are interested I would suggest that they provide Environmental Services with their views."

There was no supplementary question.

Questions 10 - 12 were not put as the 30 Minutes time period had expired. In accordance with Standing Orders, a written reply would be sent to the questioner by the appropriate Member within 10 working days, and would also be appended to the Minutes of the meeting.

### 17 PETITIONS

No petitions were received before the deadline of 5pm on Monday 10 July.

### 18 CABINET

**RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 5 June be received.

### 19 CABINET

Councillor Barnes rose to present the minutes of the Cabinet held on 10 July following the withdrawal of Councillor Miss K Wood from the meeting.

# Minute 16 - Gomm Valley & Ashwells Development Brief

A Member enquired as to the likely next steps and how we intended to engage with the local community. She was informed that this was the beginning of the consultation process and not the end and that further work would be undertaken with stakeholders prior to the determination of planning applications.

# Minute 17 – Referral from HWTC – Cemetery Security

A Member conveyed his congratulations and thanks to officers, the Cabinet, High Wycombe Town Committee and to the people of the town who had brought the petition forward which had provided a very good result. This was a great example of close working between officers and the public who had together managed to identify effective solutions.

(Councillors Ms K Wood, L Wood and D Shakespeare declared an interest and withdrew from the meeting during discussion of the Cabinet minutes of 10 July)

**RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 10 July 2017 be received and the recommendation as set out at minute number 19 be approved and adopted.

# 20 STANDARDS COMMITTEE

In the absence of the Chairman, Cllr M Clarke rose to present the minutes of the Standards committee held on11 July 2017.

**RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting of the Standards Committee held on 11 July 2017 be received.

### 21 IMPROVEMENT & REVIEW COMMISSION

In the absence of the Chairman, Cllr A D Collingwood rose to present the minutes of the meeting held on 21 June 2017.

**RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting of the Improvement & review Commission held on 21 June 2017 be received.

### 22 AUDIT COMMITTEE

**RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 15 June 2017 be received and the recommendation as set out at minute number 9 be approved and adopted.

### 23 HIGH WYCOMBE TOWN COMMITTEE

The Chairman rose to echo the comments made by Cllr Knight in relation to security in the cemetery and wished to place on record his thanks for the hard work undertaken by the officers and in their collaboration with the public.

# Minute 7 – Rye Feasibility Study

A Member enquired whether it would be possible to install some portable toilets at the Rye in the forthcoming couple of months. She was informed that this was likely to be of a higher cost than one might expect due mainly to the security issues surrounding the matter.

Another Member rose to congratulate the officers on the undertaking of the feasibility study, which would determine the requirements of the public as to what was on offer at the Rye.

**RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting of the High Wycombe Town Committee held on 13 June 2017 be received.

### 24 JNC STAFFING MATTERS COMMITTEE

**RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting of the JNC Staffing Matters Committee held on 23 May and 3 July 2017 be received.

### 25 PLANNING COMMITTEE

### Minute 99 – land adjacent 82 Daws Hill Lane

A Member questioned whether any responses had been received in relation to this matter and what stage the study had reached. She was informed that the Chairman of the Committee was unaware as to whether the study had yet been concluded and that he would follow this up.

**RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 8 March, 26 April and 31 May be received

# 26 HANDY CROSS PHASE 5 PROCUREMENT PROCESS

Councillor S Broadbent addressed the meeting, highlighting the main issues within the report submitted to Full Council for its consideration.

The report proposed a deviation from the usual approach adopted during the procurement process in the building of a nursery at Handy Cross. This would require that contract standing orders be waived and as such not necessitate the advertising of all contracts valued at over £10,000. The report also proposed to delegate the authority to award the contract to the Interim Corporate Director (Growth & Regeneration) in consultation with the Interim Head of Finance and Commercial Services together with the Cabinet members for Economic Development and Regeneration and Finance and Resources.

In considering the report before them, Members agreed with the proposals set out, and therefore it was

# **RESOLVED:** That

- (i) the procurement of the contractor to build the proposed nursery at Handy Cross, be approved, and the requirement within contract standing orders to advertise all contracts with a value of more than £10,000 be waived.
- (ii) Delegated authority to award the contract be granted to the officers/Members as set out in paragraph 15 of the report contained within the supplementary Council agenda.

### 27 QUESTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 11.2

There were none.

# 28 URGENT ACTION TAKEN BY CABINET OR INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBER

The individual decisions published since the last ordinary meeting of the Council held on 3 April 2017 as set out in the summons were noted.

### The following officers were in attendance at the meeting:

David Anderson
Interim Corporate Director
Democratic Services Manager
Iram Malik
Democratic Services Officer

Karen Satterford - Chief Executive